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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND OHIGINAL (IF K

Yarmouth is situated in fields on the east side of Bestpitch Ferry
Road, 2.2 miles southeast of Buchtown in Dorchester County, Maryland.
It 1s a five-bay long ang two—bay dcep, two-story brick structure
built above g3 high basement. All walls are laid in Flemish bond
apove the champhered water table with English bcond below. There

Al € Segmental arches above the basement windows while the arches of
the principal facades are segmental on the underside and flat on the
top, similar to Brice fdouse, Annapolis. There is a two brick deep
string course at second tloor level. The windows are replacements
and have 6/9 sash on the first story and 6/6 on the second, The
large wood cove cornice ppears original and is comparable to +he

cornice on Pemberton Hall, Wicomico County, and on the Ringgold and
Customs Houses in Chestertown, all of which were built in the 1740's.

A portico in front of the central entrance dates from the restoration,
@s does the eight~panel door and frame which had to be replaced after
a fire which damaged the door and part of the interior hall. On the
€ast gable is a cellar bulkhead. Facing the Trarscuaking River,

the north side has only one bay west of the center door with two

~~n the east side. The firss story window was originally wider and

. fobably was fitted with 12/8 sash. It now has the same size win-
dow as the others. A Goor on the west gable of the house formerly
led to the kitchen which is no longer standing. Two large chimneys
rise from within the gables in the usual fashion.

Yarmouth's floor plan has no parallel in Dorchester with the possible
exception of LaGrange in Cambridge which has been drastically
altered over its lifetime. It is not dissimilar to Beckford,
sSomerset County, but considerably smalier in scale, and Radcliffe
ranor, Talbot County.

The southern half of the house consists of a stair hall in the
center with a room on the east (now kitchen) and a smaller room on
the west which is accessible only from the dining room. On the north
side of the building is the living room, the larger of the two, and
the dining room which is accessible from beneath the stair. FEach

of the four rooms has diagonal fireplaces, the two north rooms also
have raised panel chimney breasts. The living room chimney breast
has two large horizontal panels flanked by pilasters and double
Crossette trim around the three-centered arched fireplace. Three
windows in this room have paneled window jambs. The dining room has
raneling and trim like the living room, lacking the pPillasters, and
the kitchen has paneling with bolection molding around the fireplace.
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The secong story has three bedrooms and bath with g5 corridor down the
Cencer of the house. Two Of the rooms have smali] fireplaces and most

Because of Structura]l failure in the €ast gable,
the entire wall had to be dismanteled and reconstructed, including the

Chimneys, Walls were Unaerpinned ang the floor lowered to make more
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Rnown also as White House Farm, Brick House Farm and Eccleston's Hill,
Yarmouth 1s the single most important dwelling existing in Dorchester
County from the second quarter of the 18th century. It is noted for
the extent of its intact original detail, specifically the interior
woodwork. Paneled chimney breasts and mantels remain on the first _
floor and mantels and chairrail on the second. The original stair is
extant, and on the exterior the original cove cornice. In addition
Yarmouth has a floor plan not found elsewhere in the county, with one
Pessible, but greatly altered, exception. (See description).

In.1683 the Maryvland legislature directed the rounding of a number of

19 towns on convenient sites throughout the province, to increase

ne number of official ports of entry for goods arriving in Marvyland.

- O 0of these were to be located in Dorchester County, One near presentc-
cay Madison and the other "On Travers's Land, on the West Side of the
horth-West Branch of Transguaguin River." By 1706 this latter town had
come tO be known as Little Yarmouth, but it appears to have been a

town i1n name only; when the new fowns legislation was repealed in

1715, Little Yarmouth was hardly more than a river landing with a small
store.

During the years 1700 to 1705, much of the land surrounding the site
of Little Yarmouth was purchased by a relative newcomer to Dorchester
County. Hugh Eccleston, it is believed, hailed from Buckinghamshire
in England; he arrived in Maryland about 1650, and by 1692 had become
Clerk of Dorchester County, a post which he held for eighteen vyears.
tccleston attained considerable wealth and social prominence in the
County, taxing part in many land transactions. In 1695 he patented
"Eccleston's Hill," the 200-acre tract that was to become the core of
his large plantation on the Transguakin River. To this he added by
ratent, "Retaliacion," 940 acres, in 1700, and "Merchants Goodwill,™
76 acres, in 1706. TIn addition he made several purchases of existing
cracts: ”R%chardsons_Purchase,“ 470 acres, and "Mullikins Gresen,"”
igotigriig 1n£l7?0, anf >0 acres, part of "Andersons Neck," in 1705,

€ Or his death, Eccleston also owned a 40C-acre tract calleqd

Ne
JUsopeg , ® a@lthough there is no record of how he obtained it.

‘22N Ezcclegt i £ i 3 4 :

:T_”_C‘d h:on:rgtlred rrom his position as County Clerk in 1709, andg

fﬁ;tngi; N s> friends and colleagues by leaving Cambridge, where he had
+ 241lt 3 house, in order to live full-—t:
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He died two Years later., His will, executed November 25, 1710, ang
Probated the tollowing April, recorded Several beguests to his large
family., Sons Hugh, Jr., John énd Thomas, the latter stil1 3 minor,
were designated Eccleston's Executors. Hugh received the "Dwelling
Plantation" -- breésumably "Ecclestons Hill" ang "Richardsons Purchase™
~~ and two houses and lots in Cambridge. John was given "Millintong™
Or "Mullikins Green" ang Eccleston's par+ of "Andersons Neck, " with
che provision that Thomas pe deeded half of the Property upon attain-
ing his majority. The remainder of his holdings Eccleston divideg
among his five daughters. nNo Provision was made in the will for the
disposal of Eccleston's Personal estate which was valued after his
Geath at g £88.15,06 Sterling. Consisting Primarily of livestock
and crops, slaves, farm implements ang householgd furnishings, these
articles were Presumably includegd in the becuests o Hugh Eccleston,
Jr. |

| . ]

As the eldest Son, Hugh Eccleston, Jr., who was Town Clerk of
Lambridge, assumed the ddministration of his father's estate, He

°PFears to have done his job poorly, however, for hig brothers
alleged that he scuandered their Patrimony and refused to settle
their father's just debts, After Hugh's death in 1718, John and
Thomas fijleg suit to I'ecover their Property and to bPrevent his widow
from continuing to €njoy their rightful 2SSets. Mary Skinner
Eccleston Temarried soon after his husband's death; in 1723 she ang
her secong husband, Francis Allen, resigned to John ccleston al}
right of "Dower, Title, Interest, Clainm and Demand" inp lands owneg
by BEugh Eccleston, Jr., in return Ior the sum of 3500 pounds of
tobacco. Thomas Eccleston APPears to have died in 1722, since he was
No longer mentioned after the suit was filed,

b d

rank of colonej in the local militia, 7o hi Patrimony, Eccleston
added severa] land aCguisitions of his own. He Purchaseqd "Andersons
Place," 353 acres, and patentegd in 1734 "Ecclestons Prevention," 5g
acres, and "Slipe," g0 acres. 1In 1744 these tracts, together with
Ecclestons Hiig® and "Richardsons Purchase," were Tesurveved ang
Patented by Eccleston as 2 tract of ogg acres called "Ecclestons
‘egulation_ " The PIoperty remained in the Eccleston family until
1829 swhen John Donovan, trustee for the estate of Dr. John Eccleston,
fold "Ecclestons Regulatiopn"” tO Caleb Ross. Ross again lesurveyed the
g 5: iggecginged 1ts.name to "Yarmouth, " The h9use and lang changegd
S ‘AN ten timesg between 1829 ang 1¢g¢ When Yarmouy
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chased by Mr. Jerifrey P, Willizmson, the present owner. Mr. Williamson

has done considerable research into the history of Yarmouth and of
the Eccleston tamily, and has carried out a thorough restoration.

The actual builder of this handsome brick mansion, however, remains
4 mystery. There is no known written record that would shed 1ight

on the building or early history of Yarmouth; we are forced, therefore,

to rely on architectural evidence and historical reasoning. Certain
Of the details ~-- in particular, the wooden cove cornice -- seems to
Place Yarmouth in the seccnd guarter of the eighteenth century. Its
€rection 1is generally ascribed to John bEccleston, and dated in the
late 1720's or 30"s, the time when Eccleston was taXing personal
Charge of his late father's plantation ang increasing his own hold-
1hgs. The above mentioned cornice is very similar o three 1740's
Period houses on the shore (sce Cescription). From +his and other

architectural evidence, it seems likely that Yarmouth was constructed

.

the second cuarter of the 18th century, possibly the 1740's.

GPO B35z a5s

a - ek o Amwn e gy -

Ml gy B — e —y w




W NTEDSTATES DEPARTNMENT OF THE (N1 |OR SR 1PS USE GRLY —
‘ NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
RECEIVED
NATIONAL REGISTT_IR Or HISTORIC PLLACES -
- - TE ENTERED

INVENTORY--NOMINATION FORM CATEENTER
Yarmouth
Dorchester County,
f ol ‘

CONTINUATION sHEET -2@TYland ITEM NUMBER  © PAGE 4

€ion Writers Program.

Maryland: A Guide to

. New vyork- Oxford Unji

Maryland Eall of Records. Land and Probate Rec
County,

ewater Towns., Williamsburg, Va.

Reps, John. T
9

versity Press, 1947,

oxrds of Dorchester

: Historic Williamsburg,

GPO B8z e¢55%

T e e M — AL im oa .

g, -l — i -

- ..

iy ———



b —_ ——— v ——— = - —_ _ = o e -

R

————— ———— S - S - —_

“MAJOR'BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES D-%3

Forman H. Chandlee.

J{ " d

Early Manor and Plantation Houses of Maryland,

__Faston, Maryland: by the Author, 1934,
In view with Mr., Jeffrey P. Williamson, owner.
Jones, Elias . New Revised History of Dorch
: ester County, Marwvle
Cambridge, Md.: Tidewater Publishers 1966. LD & t‘lang'
L.askowski Papers, 1955. '
| (ﬁ_gg ("‘an%nn:-!-{nq ch oo+ Ay
g R —
i}JGEOGRAPHICAL DATA
ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY _ joacres f
UTM REFERENCES
ali,8] 412,514, 67 LQLJQA2LJQ_QJ sl1,8] laloslep 6] 7N
ZONE EAST!NG NORTHING ZONE EASTING NORTHING .
cly g |42, 9412,3) Loal 124,40} o8] lal2sl4a.3) lo a2l el
- VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Beginning at a pOlnt on the south shore. of the Transguaking, River €00
feet N.W. of Yarmouth, then following the river bank east 1,000 feet,
then moving 1,400 feet S.S.W to a point, then N.W. 1,300 LEEt (crossing

the driveway) to a point, then N.E. 1,200 feet to the p01nt of the
beginning.
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YARMOUTH

Cambridge

Dorchester County, Md.
Photographed by Michael Bourne
1975 Novembe

Exterior, Eﬁ.fﬁé F )
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